
AGENDA

Pwyllgor PWYLLGOR YMGYNGHOROL RHIANTA CORFFORAETHOL

Dyddiad ac amser 
y cyfarfod

DYDD MAWRTH, 13 MEDI 2016, 2.00 PM

Lleoliad YSTAFELL BWYLLGORA 1 - NEUADD Y SIR

Aelodaeth Cynghorydd Lent (Chair)
Y Cynghorwyr De'Ath, Evans, Goddard, Merry, Sanders a/ac White

1  Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  

Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.

2  Datgan Buddiannau  

Dylid gwneud hyn ar ddechrau’r eitem agenda dan sylw, yn unol â’r Cod 
Ymddygiad Aelodau.

3  Cofnodion  (Tudalennau 1 - 4)

Cymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 24 Mai 2016 fel gwir gofnod

4  Cyflwyno Cynllun Pan fydda' i'n barod (WIR)  (Tudalennau 5 - 8)

Bydd y cyflwyniad yn rhoi gwybodaeth i’r Pwyllgor am y cynllun WIR.

Bydd Eleri John (Gwasanaethau Arbenigol) yn bresennol er mwyn darparu'r 
cyflwyniad ac i ateb cwestiynau'r Aelodau.

5  Chwarter 1 Adroddiad ar Gwynion a Chanmoliaeth 2016/17  (Tudalennau 9 - 
16)

Mae’r adroddiad yn darparu manylion i’r Pwyllgor o’r canmoliaethau a’r sylwadau 
ar gyfer Chwarter  1 - 1 Ebrill 2016 - 30 Mehefin 2016.

Bydd Irfan Alam (Cyfarwyddwr Cynorthwyol - Gwasanaethau Plant) yn bresennol 
i gyflwyno’r adroddiad.



6  Chwarter 1 Diweddariad ar Berfformiad ac Alldro Blynyddol  (Tudalennau 17 
- 34)

Mae’r adroddiad hwn yn rhoi gwybodaeth a data perfformiad o ran Chwarter 1 
2016-17 a’r alldro blynyddol ar gyfer 2015-16.

Bydd Irfan Alam (Cyfarwyddwr Cynorthwyol - Gwasanaethau Plant) yn bresennol 
i gyflwyno’r adroddiad.

7  Eitem/Diweddariad Addysg  

Darperir crynodeb i'r aelodau o'r adroddiad a gyhoeddwyd gan Estyn - yn codi 
cyraeddiadau, cyflawniadau a dyheadau plant sy'n derbyn gofal yng Nghymru.

Bydd Gillian James, (Arweinydd Cyflawni, Cau'r Bwlch) yn bresennol er mwyn 
rhoi’r diweddariad.

8  Adroddiad Chwarterol Gwasanaethau Plant NYAS  (Tudalennau 35 - 50)

Mae’r adroddiad hwn a’r atodiadau yn gyfrinachol ac ni fyddant yn cael eu 
cyhoeddi yn rhinwedd Paragraff 12 a 13 Rhan 4, a pharagraff 21 Rhan 5 
Atodlen 12A Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 (fel y’i diwygiwyd).  

Caiff y cyhoedd eu gwahardd o'r cyfarfod er mwyn ystyried yr eitem hon.

Mae’r adroddiad yn darparu diweddariad chwarterol ar berfformiad y Tîm Eirioli i’r 
Pwyllgor.

Bydd Elly Jones (Arweinydd y Project, Gwasanaeth Eiriolaeth Ieuenctid 
Cenedlaethol yn bresennol er mwyn ateb cwestiynau’r Aelodau 

9  Adroddiad Rheoliad 32  (Tudalennau 51 - 88)

Mae’r adroddiad a’r atodiadau hyn yn gyfrinachol ac ni fyddant yn cael eu 
cyhoeddi yn rhinwedd paragraffau 12 a 13 o Ran 4, a pharagraff 21 o Ran 5 
o Atodlen 12A, Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 (fel y’i diwygiwyd).   

Caiff y cyhoedd eu gwahardd o’r cyfarfod er mwyn ystyried yr eitem hon.

Bydd Debbie Martin-Jones (Rheolwr Gweithredol, Gwasanaethau Arbenigol) yn 
bresennol i gyflwyno’r adroddiad.

10  Cynllun Gweithredu drafft o'r Adroddiad Blynyddol  

Eitem diweddaru/trafod ar lafar o ganlyniad i argymhellion o’r Adroddiad 
Blynyddol ar y Pwyllgor Ymgynghorol Rhianta Corfforaethol.



11  Rhaglen Waith/ Ymweliadau Aelodau  

Rhoi’r newyddion diweddaraf i Aelodau am fanylion yr ymweliadau a drefnwyd.

12  Dyddiad y cyfarfod nesaf  

Mae cyfarfod nesaf y Pwyllgor Ymgynghorol Rhianta Corfforaethol ar 22 
Tachwedd 2016

David Marr
Swyddog Monitro Dros Dro 
Dyddiad:  Dydd Mercher, 7 Medi 2016
Cyswllt:  Mandy Farnham, 02920 872618, Mandy.Farnham@cardiff.gov.uk

This document is available in English / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Saesneg



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE

24 MAY 2016

Present: County Councillor Lent(Chairperson)
County Councillors De'Ath, Merry, Sanders and White

83 :   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies were received from Councillor Evans.

84 :   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were received.

85 :   MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting of 1 March 2016 were agreed as a correct record and 
signed by the Chairperson.

86 :   LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN'S TRAINEESHIP SCHEME ANNUAL REPORT 

The public were excluded from the meeting for the presentation provided by 
the trainee/apprentices in accordance with paragraph 12 of Part(s) 4 and 5 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

The Chair welcomed Nicola Wood, Looked After Children’s Traineeship Co-ordinator 
to the meeting, and two young people currently employed by the Council on the 
scheme.

Members were provided with a presentation by Nicola and the two young people, 
who gave an account of their experiences of the scheme.  

The Chair invited questions, comments and discussion from Members:
  

 There is to be greater focus on referrals in respect of minority groups as there 
is a lack of diversity.

 As a result of focus group work that has been done a request has been made 
by the young people that the words ‘Looked After Children’ be removed from 
the scheme title.

 There needs to be greater follow up/support of those involved in the scheme to 
ensure that they remain on the scheme as whilst, to date there has been 73 
referrals, only half have actually engaged in the process.  A protocol for 
appropriate referral is currently being developed, to consider whether referrals 
are made on the basis of need, of first come first served or older young 
people. However, it is also important that the needs of the business are also 
met.

 Interviews are scheduled for June to recruit a support worker, some of those 
involved in the traineeship will be on the interviewing panel;

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 There is to be an online launch of the traineeship scheme towards the end of 
the year and work is ongoing to create an App which can link with the My 
Planner App.

 Approaches have been made to other services, for example Shared 
Regulatory Service, although whilst feedback was positive initially the scheme 
did not fulfil their requirements.

 Whilst approaches have been made to the City Operations Directorate, in 
particular Waste Management, and an offer to outline the scheme to the 
Trades Union, no positive response has been received.  

The Chair thanked Nicola Wood and the trainees/apprentices for their attendance, 
their presentation and for answering Members questions.  

RESOLVED:  To note the content of the report and the presentation provided.

87 :   REGULATION 32 REPORT 

This item was not for publication in accordance with paragraph 12 of Part(s) 4 
& 5 of the Local Government Act 1972.

Debbie Martin-Jones was in attendance to present the report and to answer 
Members questions.

RESOLVED:  To note the information contained in the Regulation 32 Report and for 
a letter to be sent to staff at Crosslands Children’s Home acknowledging their 
continued support of children in their care.

88 :   EDUCATION MATTERS 

The Chair welcomed Nicola Holder (Acting LACE Co-ordinator) and Rosie Walsh 
(Youth Mentor for Looked after Children to the meeting.  Members were provided 
with a presentation of work undertaken by the Looked After Children in Education 
Team (‘LACE’), the funding for Looked After Children, attainment data, and 
designated teacher training days.

The Chairperson invited questions, comments and discussion from Members:

 Members were advised that schools are now able to apply for the Pupil 
Funding Deprivation Grant themselves.  Schools like to bid for a sum of money 
to be used for training in ELSA and LEGO as opposed to the previous system 
of funding per child.

 Setting education levels for each child begins with a PEP, there is an expected 
outcome within a certain time frame.  An academic assessment would be 
carried out and there would be an expected level.  Members were concerned 
about the procedure adopted should there be a differences of opinions 
between schools and the authority.  They were advised that it was  important 
that good working relationships are developed with schools.  The virtual 
tracker does aid that communication as it is provides up to date information 
which is also accessible to the Challenge Advisors.

Page 2



RESOLVED:  To note the content of the presentation provided.

89 :   QUARTER 4 COMPLAINTS AND COMPLIMENTS REPORT 2015-16 

The chairperson welcomed  Kim Brown (Service Manager, Policy and Performance) 
to the meeting.  

Members were provided with a report covering complaints and representations from 
1 January through to 31st March 2016, including a summary of complaints active 
during that period, details of independent investigations and what has been learned 
from such complaints, details of ombudsman investigations and any themes 
emerging during the quarter. A summary of compliments was also provided.

The Chairperson invited questions, comments and discussions from Members:

 Members queried and discussed whether mobile working would have any 
impact on the cluster of complaints often raised about access to Social 
Workers and whether, in due course, figures from the 12 months previous to 
the introduction of mobile working and12 months after could be obtained to 
enable Members to assess that query. 

 Members referred to paragraph 17 of the report and asked that they be 
provided with an regular update on previous themes that have emerged and 
raised by Members.

RESOLVED:  To endorse the content of the report and be provided with regular 
updates about previous thematic issues raised.

90 :   INDEPENDENT REVIEWING OFFICERS (IRO) REPORT 

The Committee welcomed Natasha James (Service Manager, Safeguarding & 
Review) to the meeting.  The report was presented to Members, the purpose of the 
report to provide information about the role, function and activity of the IRO service.  
It was noted that IRO’s have specific responsibility to escalate concerns about 
Looked After Children, through a dispute resolution process which can ultimately lead 
to the involvement of CAFCASS Cymru considering legal action, if through 
necessary.

RESOLVED:  To note the information contained in the report.

91 :   CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE REPORT - 
DISCUSSION ITEM 

Members considered the content of the draft Corporate Parenting Advisory 
Committee Annual Report and confirmed they had no further comment or 
observations.  The Annual Report would go to Council in June 2016.

92 :   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting of the Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee is on Tuesday 19 
July 2016 2.00 pm.

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF 
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE

 13 September 2016

When I Am Ready ( WIR) 

Reason for the Report 

1. The Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee is responsible for actively 

promoting real and sustained improvements in the life chances of Looked After 

Children, Children in Need, and Care Leavers.  This report will provide 

Members with information in relation to the ‘When I am Ready’ (WIR) scheme 

enables young people in foster care to continue to live with their former foster 

carers under a different arrangement once they turn 18yrs. The presentation will 

provide information on the number of young people this may affect and the 

different living arrangement that has to be developed with monitored outcomes.

Background

2. The When I am Ready (WIR) scheme is part of the local authorities new legal 

duties under the Social Services and Well Being (Wales) Act 2014, which came 

into force April 2016

3. The transition to adulthood can be more difficult for care leavers than many 

peers of a similar age. This scheme will give young people the time and support 

to develop the necessary skills and resilience to make a successful transition. 

4. The WIR scheme seeks to ensure  that the life chances of Looked After 

Children and  care leavers are maximised in terms of health, educational 

attainment, and access to training and employment, to aid the transition to a 

secure and productive adulthood.

5. The WIR scheme allows young people, who have previously been fostered, to 

stay in a stable and nurturing family environment up to the age of 21yrs or 25yrs 

if they are completing an agreed programme of education or training. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



6. The presentation will give more information about the Cardiff WIR scheme, the 

impact on young people and their former foster carers, and the outcomes to 

date. 

Financial Implications 

7. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.   

Legal Implications

8.  When I am ready is the name given to the scheme through which local 

authorities fulfil their statutory duty to facilitate post 18 living arrangements 

under the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014. It imposes duties 

upon local authorities towards young people in foster care who wish to continue 

living with their foster parents beyond the age of 18, up until the age of 21 or 

until they young person ends their agreed programme of education or training 

after their 21st birthday. 

There are duties upon the Local Authority under the Act to;

i) Ascertain when completing  pathway assessments/plans for young 

people aged 16 and 17, to ascertain whether the young person or his 

foster carers wish to make a post 18 living arrangement.

ii) To provide advice and support to facilitate post 18 living 

arrangements, where the young person and foster carers wish to 

enter into them and provided the local authority is satisfied that this is 

not inconsistent with the young person’s well-being.

Once a young person has turned 18 and is an adult, they are no longer legally 

‘in care’ or ‘looked after’, fostering arrangements and legislation relating to 

children placed with foster cares no longer apply. The Local Authority is no 

longer making a ‘placement’, but facilitating a ‘post 18 living arrangement’ for 

that young person.

Page 6



RECOMMENDATION

9. The Committee is recommended to note the information presented.  

TONY YOUNG         
Director of Social Services          
7 September 2016

Page 7



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1

CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF 
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
13 September 2016

QUARTERLY COMPLAINTS AND REPRESENTATIONS REPORT
QUARTER 1 2016-17

Reason for the Report
1. The Committee’s terms of reference state that it will receive Children’s Services 

Complaints reports.

2. This Quarter 1 Report covers complaints and representations from 1st April 

2016 through to 30th June 2016.

Introduction
3. The current Welsh Government guidance and regulations in relation to social 

services complaints and representations came into being on 1st August 2014.

4. The procedure places the emphasis on the initial local resolution stage – Stage 

1 - with complainants being offered a discussion to resolve the matter.  The 

second formal stage (Stage 2) provides for independent investigation.  If the 

outcome of Stage 2 does not satisfy the complainant s/he has recourse to the 

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales.

5. Citizens making complaints have a right to be listened to properly and have 

their concerns resolved quickly and effectively.  Children’s Services emphasis is 

on listening to concerns and using this learning to improve services for 

everyone who uses them.

6. Complaints should be handled in such a way that the complainant is the focus, 

not the process, and that the particular circumstances of the complainant are 

taken into account (including their age or disability).  Where the complaint 

relates to a looked after child, a child in need or a care leaver the local authority 

has a duty under the Children Act 1989 to provide an advocate as required.  All 

children or young people who make complaints are offered a meeting and all 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



2

children and families will receive a written response to the concerns they have 

raised.

7. The Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 devotes Part 10 to 

complaints and this reflects Welsh Government guidance and regulations and 

the Councils procedures.  The Council is mindful that the Act will further 

promote people’s rights and collaborative working will be actively encouraged.

Summary of Complaints Activity During the Period
8.

Item Q1 2016-17

Number open at start of period 31
Number received (overall) 24
Number received directly from 
children and young people

1

Number closed 20
Number outstanding at end of 
period

35

% acknowledged within 2 working 
days

16 / 24 = 67%

% concluded within 15 working 
days of acknowledgement

4 / 20 = 20%

9. During this quarter the number of complaints received by Children’s Services 

has reduced to 24 (from 32 in Quarter 4 2015-16).

a. 46% (11) of the complaints received were in relation to the Social Worker 

or the service received.  8% (2) of the complaints received were in 

relation to communication / confidentiality.  The remaining 46% (11) of 

complaints were in relation to other issues including decision making, 

contact, finance and placement.

b. 5 complaints were received about the Intake & Assessment Service, 

compared with 11 in Quarter 4.  14 complaints were received regarding 

the Child in Need Service compared with 9 in Quarter 4; 3 complaints 

were received about the Looked After Children Service compared with 8 

in Quarter 4; one of which was received from a care leaver.  The 

remaining 2 complaints were in relation to the Personal Adviser Service 

Page 10



3

and the Safeguarding Unit.

10.An example of a complaint resolved during the quarter is:

The grandmother of a looked after child contacted the Complaints Officer in 

relation to issues regarding contact with the child.  Grandmother reported that 

despite repeated telephone calls to the social worker she had not had a 

response and that she and her son (the child’s father) had not seen the child.  

Grandmother stated that a recent contact session was cancelled and that they 

were anxious to see the child to give birthday gifts.  Grandmother had taken 

time off work to attend.

In response the social worker contacted grandmother and explained that 

contact had not taken place as father had previously missed a number of 

contact sessions, and repeated attempts to contact father had failed because 

his contact details had changed.  Attempts were made to speak to father via his 

legal representation but his solicitor had tried and failed.

Grandmother was informed that Children’s Services were not aware that she 

would be attending the cancelled contact session which is why she was not 

informed of its cancellation.  Apologies were given and the date and time of the 

next contact session was provided with an explanation that Children’s Services 

are not in a position to set up sole contact for grandmother, and that dates for 

her son’s contact sessions has been forwarded to his solicitor.  The social 

worker arranged for a colleague to collect a card and present from grandmother 

to pass to her grandchild.

Stage 2 Independent Investigations
11. If complainants remain unsatisfied at the conclusion of the informal Stage 1, 

they are entitled to seek a formal Independent Investigation under Stage 2 of 

the procedure.

12.At 31st March 2016 there were 8 complaints open at Stage 2, one of which was 

resolved during Quarter 1.

Page 11



4

13.1 new Stage 2 investigation was initiated during the quarter, so at 30th June 

2016 there were 8 complaints being investigated under Stage 2 of the 

complaints procedure.

Ombudsman Investigations
14.There was Ombudsman activity in relation to 3 complaints during the quarter:

a. One response from the Ombudsman was received that included 

recommendations - Children’s Services are in the process of responding 

to these.

b. The Ombudsman considered information provided by Children’s 

Services and determined that they would not be investigating one 

complaint.

c. The Ombudsman are liaising with Children’s Services although not 

actively investigating one complaint.

Learning from Complaints
15.Stage 2 reports undertaken by Independent Investigators and reports from the 

Ombudsman include recommendations if required.  In response, an Action Plan 

is initiated to ensure that the recommendations are implemented and lessons 

are learned.

16. In response to the number of complaints currently being investigated under 

Stage 2, or for which there has been Ombudsman activity during the quarter, 

the Children’s Services complaints process was considered by the Director and 

the Directorate Management Team.  It was agreed that the Directorate would 

explore the opportunity to commission an independent external review.

Themes Emerging During the Quarter
17.Quarterly complaints reports are shared with managers so any emerging 

themes can be considered and actions can be taken to improve practice.

Page 12



5

18.The previously noted issue of social workers not returning calls re-emerged 

during the quarter.  The message continues to be reinforced and senior 

managers will follow up on any individual issues that are brought to their 

attention.  In addition, the new agile / mobile working arrangements have 

provided social workers with more flexibility and the right kit to enable them to 

respond to messages in a more timely way.

Update on Progress from Themes Identified in Previous Periods
19.No new themes emerging from complaints were identified during Quarter 3.

20.Two themes that have previously emerged are social workers not returning calls 

and father involvement in assessments.

21.Please see paragraph 18 above regarding social workers returning calls.

22. In relation to father involvement in assessments, this theme has not re-

emerged, and is not expected to as a result of the following:

a. Senior managers have more of an oversight into casework (e.g. by 

chairing the Legal Surgery) and challenge practice where it is considered 

that both parents have not been consulted.

b. In preparation for the implementation of the Signs of Safety approach 

(which maps out a safety network for children considered to be at risk), 

social workers routinely consider every relationship linked to the child 

and this will include both parents and extended family.

c. The re-introduction of Family Group Conferences in April 2016 reinforces 

the whole family approach as they also involve both parents and 

extended family.

Early Resolution
23.Children’s Services place an emphasis on resolving issues at the earliest 

possible opportunity, and where these concerns are dealt with immediately they 

are not opened as a formal complaint.  On these occasions, the issues are 

brought to the attention of relevant Team or Operational Managers who acted 

Page 13



6

promptly to address the issues raised to the satisfaction of the individual.  There 

are 4 examples of this during Quarter 1.

Summary of Compliments
24.Teams are more readily sharing the compliments they receive from a variety of 

sources, e.g. service users and professionals, although it is recognised that 

further work is required to ensure that all compliments are captured and 

reported.

25.9 compliments were received in Quarter 4 compared with 13 in Quarter 4.  A 

breakdown of compliments by team is provided below.  This will help Children’s 

Services build upon positive work and could identify improvements. 

Team No. of Compliments
I&A 2
CiN 6
Looked After Children 0
Other 1 (Fostering)

26.Example of a compliment received during the quarter:

Children’s Services were contacted by a member of staff from another local 

authority who commented “I would like to take this opportunity to sincerely 

thank you for the way you managed this case, you are one of the most 

professional social workers I have been lucky enough to work with and you 

made my job very easy”.

Responses to AM / MP / Councillor Enquiry Letters
27.19 AM / MP / Councillor enquiry letters were received by Children’s Services 

during the quarter.  An example of these enquiries is in response to a funding 

cut for use of the Scope bus to take children to the day centre at Sully.

Subject Access Requests
28.A Subject Access Request is a request from an individual to see a copy of the 

information an organisation holds about them, or their children.  These requests 

should be responded to within 40 calendar days of receipt.  Some types of 

personal data are exempt from the right of subject access and so cannot be 

Page 14



7

obtained by making such a request.  On receipt of the request work is 

undertaken to ensure that individuals are only provided with information that 

they are entitled to receive.

29.Children’s Services undertook the following activity in relation to Subject Access 

Requests in Quarter 1 2016-17:

a. 4 were responded to on time.

b. 4 were completed outside of the statutory time frame.

c. 1 was closed because no identification was received.

d. 1 was in process at the end of the quarter.

30. In addition to this, Children’s Services received:

a. 23 requests from the Police under the 2013 Protocol and Good Practice 

Model re: Disclosure of information in cases of alleged child abuse and 

linked criminal and care directions.

b. 9 requests from other Councils, CAFCASS and the Central Authority for 

access to records under Section 35 of the Freedom of Information Act.  

These requests relate to cases in legal proceedings.

Financial Implications
31.There are no direct financial implications arising from the report.

Legal Implications
32.There are no legal implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATION

33.The Committee is recommended to:

i. To endorse the report.

TONY YOUNG
Director of Social Services

18th August 2016

Page 15



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1

CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
13th September 2016

Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee Performance Summary – Quarter 1 
and 2015-16 Annual Outturn

Reasons for the Report 

1. The purpose of the report is to provide the Committee with information and 

performance data in respect of Quarter 1 2016-17 and the annual outturn for 

2015-16 to enable the Committee to:

a. Understand the factors that impact on outcomes for looked after children.

b. Consider opportunities for improving outcomes for looked after children.

2. This is the latest attempt at a more strategic approach to reporting to 

Committee.  It will be used as the basis for developing future reports that will 

give Members an understanding of cross cutting issues relating to looked after 

children both within the Council and wider partnerships.

3. The Quarter 1 report covers the period from 1st April 2016 to 30th June 2016 

and the annual outturn for 2015-16.

4. The new Social Services & Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 that came into force on 

6th April 2016 provides the legal framework for improving the wellbeing of 

people who need care and support, and carers who need support, and for 

transforming social services in Wales.  The Council is working on the 

implementation of the Act and the associated National Outcomes Framework 

during 2016-17.  In terms of performance management and monitoring, the 

implementation of the Act has 3 significant implications:

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



2

a. National Strategic Indicators (NSIs) / Public Accountability 
Measures (PAMs)
It had been our expectation that all NSIs and PAMs would come to an 

end after 2015-16, but the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) 

has decided to retain 2 Children’s Services NSIs / PAMs on a non-

statutory basis for 2016-17.  The impact of this for Children’s Services 

will be minimal as both of these indicators are also included in the new 

National Outcomes Framework.

b. Quantitative Measures
Children’s Services have 14 new performance indicators under the new 

National Outcomes Framework and have agreed that a further 15 

indicators from the old national set are still relevant and will continue to 

be collected.  A list of the new national Children’s Services PIs is 

available at Appendix A.  As many of these PIs are new, it is not 

possible to set targets for 2016-17.  Rather, during 2016-17 we are 

working to establish a baseline position which will enable a robust target 

setting methodology to be implemented.  Where the National Outcomes 

Framework Measures were previously NSIs, PAMs or Service 

Improvement Data, targets have been set for 2016-17 and 2017-18.

c. Qualitative Measures
A substantially greater focus on qualitative information and outcomes 

which brings a new set of challenges in terms of capturing performance 

in this area.  The purpose of collecting this information is to provide a tool 

for local authorities to secure service user voices in designing, 

developing and improving care and support services.

Overview of Annual Outturn Performance

5. During 2015-16 the focus continued to be on improving performance in relation 

to indicators that have the greatest significance for safe and effective practice 

concerning children.  Those selected for this focus were based on guidance 

agreed between the Association of Directors of Social Services (ADSS), the 

Care & Social Services Inspectorate, Wales (CSSIW) and the Welsh Local 

Page 18



3

Government Association (WLGA).  The annual outturn demonstrated overall 

improvement against these PIs, with some exceptions, and the overall trend is 

positive.

6. Examples of indicators that improved include:

a. Permanence plans by second looked after review - 92% in 2015-16 from 

81% in 2014-15.

b. Timeliness of looked after children reviews - 95% in 2015-16 from 88% in 

2014-15.

c. Percentage of looked after children who had their teeth checked by a 

dentist - 85% in 2015-16 from 73% in 2014-15.

d. Personal Advisers for care leavers - 70% in 2015-16 from 40% in 2014-

15.

7. Examples of indicators that declined include:

a. Percentage of looked after children achieving the core subject indicator at 

Key Stage 2 - 55% in 2015-16 from 65% in 2014-15.

b. Percentage of looked after children achieving the core subject indicator at 

Key Stage 3 - 34% in 2015-16 from 37% in 2014-15.

c. Secondary school attendance for looked after children - 92% in 2015-16 

from 94% in 2014-15.

8. In relation to the outturn for the 11 NSIs / PAMs for 2015-16, in comparison to 

2014-15, 7 showed improvement and 4 declined.  These are outlined below:

9. NSIs / PAMs that improved were:

a. Percentage of reviews on time – 70% in 2015-16 from 48% in 2014-15.

b. Children seen alone by a social worker during initial assessment – 29% in 

2015-16 from 26% in 2014-15.

c. 3+ placement moves for looked after children – 10% in 2015-16 from 11% 

in 2014-15.

Page 19



4

d. Non transitional school moves for looked after children – 9% in 2015-16 

from 18% in 2014-15.

e. Average external qualifications point score for looked after children – 257 

in 2015-16 from 191 in 2014-15.

f. Pathway plans for care leavers – 73% in 2015-16 from 61% in 2014-15.

g. Care leavers in touch at 19 - 94% in 2015-16 from 91% in 2014-15.

10.NSIs / PAMs that declined were:

a. Children seen by a social worker during initial assessment – 60% in 2015-

16 from 61% in 2014-15.

b. Timeliness of statutory visits to looked after children - 87% in 2015-16 

from 89% in 2014-15.

c. Care leavers in suitable non emergency accommodation at 19 - 86% in 

2015-16 from 91% in 2014-15.

d. Care leavers in Education, Training and Employment at 19 - 52% in 2015-

16 from 56.1% in 2014-15.

Overview of Quarter 1 Performance

11.As a result of the changes to the performance indicator sets that were 

introduced in April, it is difficult to provide a full overview of performance as 

there is no comparator data for the new indicators as this is the first time that 

they have been reported.  In relation to indicators that have been carried over 

from the previous set, while there are improvements in relation to allocation of 

children in need to social workers (69% from 63% in Quarter 4), there has been 

a small slippage in performance in some areas.

12.For example, performance in relation to timeliness of child protection review 

conferences reduced from 100% to 98% and the percentage of social worker 

vacancies increased from 22% to 23%.

13.Work to progress the Directorate’s commitments in the Corporate Plan has 

continued and key areas of progress include:

Page 20



5

a. Corporate Parenting Strategy – The Corporate Parenting Strategy was 

approved by Cabinet.  An implementation plan to address the key 

outcomes of the Strategy is included as part of the Strategy document.

b. Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) - Children’s Services, Health, 

Police, Probation and Wales Community Rehabilitation Company were 

co-located at Cardiff Bay Police Station in readiness for the go-live date 

on 4th July 2016.  Education preparations to join MASH are underway – it 

is anticipated that staff will be co-located in Quarter 2.

c. Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Strategy – The CSE Strategy was 

approved by Cabinet.  An implementation plan is in place and targets are 

being met.  As part of the Strategy a publicity campaign has been 

launched under the banner “Not in Our City, Not to Our Children”.  A 

case review was undertaken covering the period January 2014 to 

December 2015:

 Trends, patterns and areas of practice improvement identified.

 Changes in process implemented in light of findings.

 Bespoke training for individual teams being rolled out.

 Guidance for staff issued.

 Range of tools to support practice under development.

Work is underway to improve multi agency working – a Professional 

Interest Group has been established and is well supported by multi-

agencies.  Third sector organisations have been consulted and report 

improvements in the statutory response to CSE.  All organisations 

offering support to children at risk of CSE are meeting quarterly to 

ensure a cooperative, coordinated approach to tackling CSE in Cardiff.

d. Effectiveness of Transition - Transition protocols for Cardiff and the 

Vale of Glamorgan have been reviewed and areas for alignment 

identified.  Following a scoping of needs exercise, additional Welsh 

Government funding (£2.5 million) has been secured for work relating to 

joint working arrangements, enhancing transition arrangements and the 

Page 21



6

delivery of services across Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan.  

Additional staff are to be recruited into Adult Services to work more 

closely with Children’s Services in Cardiff and to align the transition 

services across the region.

e. Specialist training regarding the Social Services and Wellbeing 
(Wales) Act 2014 - Specialist training on phase 2 (local implementation) 

of the Social Services & Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 has commenced 

and training for elected members is expected to take place in Quarter 2.  

Outcome focussed training for Social Services, Health and third sector 

staff has also commenced.

14.There has been some slippage in progress against some of the milestones in 

the Corporate Plan relating to:

e. Recruitment and retention of children’s social workers – The 

Recruitment and Retention campaign has been reviewed.  Work to 

refresh adverts will be undertaken in Quarter 2.  Children’s Services will 

recruit to a ‘pool’ of additional social workers once all vacancies have 

been filled.  This will enable the service to maintain consistency of 

service provision and caseload levels along with the ability to manage a 

healthy turnover of staff and to minimise the need to rely on expensive 

agency workers.  In relation to retention - remodelling of services is 

designed to support better retention of staff.  The Care & Social Services 

Inspectorate, Wales (CSSIW) commented that investment into workforce 

planning has improved the ability to recruit suitably qualified and 

experienced staff.  A Workforce Strategy Implementation Group has 

commenced work to consider internal opportunities for secondments / 

shadowing in order to promote staff retention.  Interviews have been 

undertaken for secondment to the degree in Social Work and 2 new 

seconded places offered for 2016-17.  The vacancy position remains 

reasonably stable at 23%, although this is slightly higher than the 22% 

reported for Quarter 4 2015-16.

Page 22



7

15. In relation to the Directorate Plan, there has been progress in relation to:

f. Implementing Information, Advice and Assistance functions – 

Information via Dewis Cymru, the City of Cardiff Council Web Pages and 

the Family Information Service; Advice via the Multi Agency Safeguarding 

Hub (MASH) and Assistance via the MASH and case management 

teams.

g. Remodelling of services for disabled children, young people and 
young adults – A scoping exercise on the needs of disabled children and 

young people with most complex needs has been completed.  As a result, 

additional Welsh Government funding has been secured with regard to 

joint working arrangements and the delivery of services across Cardiff 

and the Vale of Glamorgan and Cardiff and Vale University Health Board 

(UHB).

h. Regional Workforce Development Partnership – A transitional strategy 

for 2016-17 that takes account of the Social Services & Wellbeing 

(Wales) 2014 Act has been agreed.

i. Health and wellbeing of the Social Services workforce – Supervision 

procedures have been updated and implemented and an audit on the 

quality of supervision being delivered in Children’s Services has 

commenced.  Dates for ‘Meeting the Management Team’ roadshows 

have been identified - arrangements being finalised at the time of writing.

j. Bilingual Services - The identification of front line teams has been 

completed.  A draft action plan for the implementation of Welsh Language 

Standards and the Strategic Framework for Welsh Language Services in 

Health, Social Services and Social Care has been drawn up and will be 

presented to the Directorate’s Management Team for approval.

k. Agile / Mobile Working Strategy – Phase 1 implementation was 

achieved and phase 2 roll out is scheduled for Quarter 2.

Page 23



8

l. Strategic approach to commissioning - Strategic Commissioning 

workshops have taken place, scoping out the requirements for 

establishing a Directorate-wide Commissioning Strategy.  Agreement to 

develop a framework to promote joint commissioning of services for 

disabled children and young people has been agreed as one of the 

priorities of the Cardiff & Vale Integrated Children’s Programme Board 

which reports to the Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) 

Executive.

m. Collaborative working – A scoping exercise has commenced to 

consider the feasibility of developing a Regional Training Centre across 

Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan.

n. Quality Assurance Framework - Interim Quality Assurance (QA) Officer 

appointed and in post.  The draft Quality Assurance (QA) Framework was 

reviewed and updated to reflect the terminology and ethos of the new 

Social Services & Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014.  Following Directorate 

Management Team (DMT) approval the revised document will be 

circulated to all staff.

o. Social Services Business Unit - Operational Manager with responsibility 

for developing and implementing an integrated Business Unit commenced 

new duties during the quarter.  The high level structure has been agreed 

by Directorate Management Team and circulated to staff.

p. Benchmarking - 2016-17 sees the introduction of new Social Services 

performance measures under the Social Services & Wellbeing (Wales) 

Act 2014.  In order to set targets for future years, 2016-17 will be treated 

as a benchmarking year where baselines are set and target setting 

methodology is agreed.  2016-17 will also see substantial work in the 

area of customer satisfaction, as the Directorate will undertake the 

national survey element of the new Social Services Performance 

Measures.  This will entail gathering qualitative information via 

questionnaires to accompany our performance indicators, in order to 

compare service user satisfaction across all Welsh authorities.  The 

Page 24



9

survey will run between September and November 2016 and be reported 

on in March 2017.  Benchmarking work commenced in 2015-16 regarding 

the commissioning of Stage 2 complaints investigators and independent 

persons will be taken forward in 2016-17.

q. Early Help Strategy – The Joint Assessment Family Framework (JAFF) 

pilot is ongoing and subject to regular monitoring and review; training has 

commenced.

r. New model for the delivery of children’s social services - Signs of 

Safety Framework training is underway through a planned incremental 

programme of evidence based practice training that will enable familiarity 

with the Signs of Safety approach to child and family case management 

and the introduction of practice tools focussing on Assessment, Planning 

and Engaging Children & Families.

s. Adolescent Resource Centre (ARC) - Site for the ARC secured.  Local 

member consultation has been undertaken and planning commenced to 

make the interior fit for purpose.

t. Joint working protocol between the Health Service and Children’s 
Services – A scoping exercise undertaken to identify both Health and 

Children’s Services’ priorities regarding the health needs of looked after 

children and a development session held to fine tune key themes and 

priorities.  A follow-up meeting is planned to look at the increasing need 

for looked after children to have therapy and to consider the need for 

Health to give help and advice that will enable Children’s Services to 

understand who determines what therapy and who then delivers that 

therapy.  A part-time psychologist has been appointed by Health to 

provide a dedicated service to looked after children.

u. When I Am Ready Scheme - The When I am Ready scheme that 

enables young people in foster care to continue living with their foster 

carers once they turn 18 was launched and is operational.

Page 25



10

16.There has also been some slippage in progress against some of the milestones 

in the Directorate Plan relating to:

a. Social Services Workforce Strategy – The Children’s Services 

Workforce Strategy implementation plan has been completed and 

agreed by the Children’s Management Team.  A Task Group to progress 

the actions in the implementation plan has been established and is 

making good progress against the key actions.  The Human Resource 

(HR) People Services member provides a direct link between the 

Children’s Services’ Workforce Development Strategy and the corporate 

strategy.  Agreement is needed on mechanisms to develop a similar 

strategic approach to workforce development in Adult Services.

Budget and savings proposals - The month 3 monitoring position for 

Children’s Services shows a projected overspend of £1.976m, against a 

budget of £47.340m.  The overspend largely reflects a shortfall of 

£1.529m against the £3.527m of targeted savings relating to 2016-17 

and previous years.  The savings shortfall of £1.529m reflects anticipated 

under-achievements on external placements (including the Enhanced 

Fostering Scheme), legal costs, the lean review and market 

management.  Aside from this, there are some cost increases in external 

fostering and staffing costs.  The position reflects a number of 

assumptions, notably the anticipated drawdown of £950,000 of 

contingency budget set aside for growth in children’s external 

placements.  The position also assumes that an increase in Special 

Guardianship Order allowances will be implemented in August.

Progress in relation to the Education of Looked After Children

17.Designated teacher forums take place termly giving schools the opportunity to 

share positive practice that they have put in place.  The focus of the autumn 

forum will be Attachment Awareness training.

18.The majority of the Pupil Deprivation Grant (PDG) for 2016-17 has been given 

directly to schools via the Consortium (Cardiff, Bridgend, Merthyr Tydfil, 

Page 26



11

Rhondda Cynon Taff and the Vale of Glamorgan).  The Consortium has 

maintained an amount for training across the consortium and to have a 

consortium based Looked After Children Education (LACE) team.  This decision 

has implications for the small team supporting schools in Cardiff as some posts 

were funded from the PDG grant.  Other streams of funding for the team are 

being sought.  The amount of additional Educational Psychology time has had 

to be reduced as these posts had been funded from the grant in the previous 

financial year.

19. In relation to the virtual school” data tracking system for all looked after children, 

the tracker is being updated with the summer term teacher assessment.  A new 

tracker sheet has been devised for schools after the initial pilot identified issues 

in transferring information to the Virtual tracker effectively.  The majority of 

schools are sending in termly information when requested.

20.Representatives from the Child Health & Disability team and from the Education 

Casework Team were present at the June Multi Agency (MAG) Meeting and will 

continue to be present in meetings in the coming school year.  The meetings 

continue to develop and are more focussed using the data that is now available.

Detailed Commentary – Quarter 1 2016-17 and Annual Outturn 2015-16

21.The number of children who were looked after at 30th June 2016 (not including 

those children being looked after as part of a respite care arrangement) was 

681 compared with 644 at 31st March 2016 (CS LAC 3e).  This represents a 

rate of 9.3 children per 1,000 in Cardiff, which is above the all Wales rate of 9.1 

per 1,000 as at 31st March 2014.

22.The percentage of children supported to remain living within their family (SSWB 

25) was 59.0% (980 / 1,661).  Of the 1,661 children with a Care & Support Plan 

at 30th June 2016, 980 were being supported to live at home (i.e. were not 

being looked after).

23.The percentage of looked after children returned home from care during the 

year (SSWB 26) was 3.2%.  Of the 747 children who have been looked after 

Page 27



12

during the year to date, 24 have returned home.  This PI is cumulative, and 

performance will improve as we progress throughout the year.

24.The latter two PIs are a welcome measure of the effectiveness of the Service in 

supporting children and young people within their families.

25.73.6% (391 / 531) of looked after children were placed with independent sector 

providers at the end of Quarter 1 (CS LAC 44), an increase from 72.0% (363 / 

504) in Quarter 4.  The number of children placed in independent sector 

residential placements has increased to 54 from 50 at the end of Quarter 4.

26.61.2% (325 / 531) of children in regulated placements were placed in Cardiff at 

the end of Quarter 1 compared with 62.5% (315 / 504) at the end of Quarter 4 

(CS LAC 58).  A further 85 children placed outside Cardiff were within 20 miles 

of their home address.  5 of the children not placed in Cardiff are placed with 

relative carers.  For some children placement outside the authority is in their 

best interests, examples include children placed with family members who live 

outside Cardiff, children placed in specialist placements and some children who 

are placed in areas that are closer to their home address than some parts of the 

city.

27.96.1% (492 / 512) of statutory reviews for looked after children were held within 

prescribed timescales in Quarter 1 an improvement from 92.7% (395 / 426) in 

Quarter 4 (SCC/021).  94.1% (482 / 512) of statutory visits were held in 

accordance with regulations in Quarter 4 showing an increase from 91.1% (388 

/ 426) in Quarter 4 (SCC/025).

28.All looked after children were allocated to a social worker at 30th June 2016. 

29.9.9% (64 / 644) of children who were looked after at 31st March 2016 had 3 or 

more placements during the year, compared with 10.5% (68 / 650) in 2014-15 

(SCC/004 – NSI/PAM).

30. In 2015-16 performance regarding health assessments for looked after children 

improved with 76.0% of the health assessments due in the year being 

Page 28



13

undertaken, compared with 73.3% in 2014-15 (SCC/039).  Performance 

regarding dental checks improved to 84.5% from 73.2% in 2014-15 (SCC/020).  

Focussed resource was identified to support improved recording of this 

information during the year.  The number of looked after children registered with 

a GP within 10 working days of the start of a new placement also increased to 

48.2% compared with 41.6% in 2014-15 (SCC/040).  Performance in relation to 

GP registration is based on electronic records.  It is thought that the level of 

performance is impacted by under-recording and is not a true reflection of 

actual performance against this indicator.

31. In relation to the education of looked after children, the overall picture during the 

year is mixed.  Improvements have resulted from focussed work over several 

years to improve outcomes for looked after children, including an increased 

focus on joint working with the Education Service.  Further work is required to 

build upon these improvements and joint work across Children’s Services and 

Education is ongoing.  Indicators which showed some improvement are detailed 

below:

a. 9.1% (34 / 372) of compulsory school age children who were looked after 

at 31 March 2016 experienced a non-transitional school move during the 

year, compared with 17.8% (68 / 382) in 2014-15 (SCC/002 - NSI).  13 of 

the looked after children who experienced a non transitional school move 

during the year also experienced 3 or more placements.

b. The average number of fixed term exclusion days for looked after 

children was 3.5 compared with 4.9 in 2014-15 (SCC/044b).  This 

equates to 124 days for 35 children (compared with 185 days for 38 

children in 2014-15).

c. 27.6% of Personal Education Plans (PEPs) were in place compared with 

20.4% in 2014-15 (SCC/024).  Following concerns raised in Quarter 2, 

and the introduction of information for managers to enable proactive 

monitoring of PEPs, there was a small improvement in performance 

regarding timely completion of PEPs in 2015/16 (27.6% from 20.4% in 

2014/15). It is acknowledged that further improvement is required and 

information to enable proactive monitoring of PEPs is now being 

provided to enable Operational and Team Managers to prioritise 

Page 29



14

improvement.  Operational Managers for relevant services are continuing 

to re-enforce the need to ensure that staff give high priority to completing 

the PEP when children become looked after.

d. The average external qualifications points score for looked after children 

increased to 257 from 191 in 2014-15 (SCC/037 - NSI), and the target of 

220 was met.

32.Performance regarding primary school attendance for children looked after in 

Cardiff schools remained stable at 96.7%, compared with 96.9% in 2014-15 

(SCC/022a).

33. Indicators where performance declined during the year are summarised below:

a. Secondary school attendance for children looked after in Cardiff schools 

declined slightly to 91.8%, compared with 93.6% in 2014-15 (SCC/022b).

b. 2 looked after children were permanently excluded during the year, the 

first time that any looked have children have been permanently excluded 

since 2010-11 (SCC/044a).

c. Achievement of the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 2 (reaching 

Level 4 in Science, Mathematics and English or Welsh) was 54.5% 

compared with 65.2% in 2014-15 (SCC/035).

d. Achievement of the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 3 (reaching 

Level 5 in Science, Mathematics and English or Welsh) was 34.4% from 

37.0% in 2014-15 (SCC/036).

34. In respect of young people entitled to leaving care services, performance 

showed considerable improvement with 73.3% (332 / 453) having a Pathway 

Plan as required in 2015-16 compared with 60.5% (263 / 435) in 2014-15 

(SCC/041a - NSI).  An additional 30 young people have Pathway Plans that are 

in the process of being completed.  The Pathway Planning process was 

reviewed during 2014-15 and the new forms were launched during the autumn 

of 2015, supported by best practice training in order to improve performance.  In 

Page 30



15

the case of some young people who are age 16 and due to sit GCSEs shortly, 

social workers have taken the decision to wait until exams have finished before 

formulating the plans with young people.

35.70.4% of care leavers had a Personal Adviser compared with 39.8% in 2014-

15.  Performance reflects improved capacity in the Personal Adviser service 

following successful recruitment during the year.  Recruitment to the final 3 

vacant posts in ongoing and in the meantime, all those young people aged 16-

18 who do not have a Personal Adviser, should have an allocated social 

worker.

36.Children’s Services was in touch with 94.0% (63 / 67) of care leavers at the age 

of 19 during the year, compared with 90.5% (57 / 63) (SCC/033d - NSI).  The 

service attempts to keep in touch with all care leavers as required, however the 

young people determine for themselves whether they wish to respond and 

remain in contact.

37.85.7% (54 / 63) of care leavers we were in touch with were in suitable non-

emergency accommodation (SCC/033e - NSI) compared with 91.2% (52 / 57) in 

2014-15.  9 young people were not considered to be in suitable non-emergency 

accommodation at 19, 4 of whom were in custody.  In all other instances where 

a young person is in accommodation that is deemed unsuitable, Personal 

Advisers work with them to offer accommodation options that resolve this 

situation.  However, ultimately, the young people make their own choices and 

often refuse options that are deemed to be more suitable.  The new 

accommodation project (Young Person’s Housing Gateway) that was initiated 

as part of the Organisational Development Programme in 2015-16 has 

improved accommodation offers for young people and we would expect this to 

impact more significantly for this group of young people during the forthcoming 

year.

38.52.4% (33 / 63) of care leavers at 19 were in education, training or employment 

(SCC/033f - NSI) compared with 56.1% (32 / 57) in 2014-15.  The Looked After 

Children Trainee Scheme has gone from strength to strength.  Over the year 31 

young people have had experience of work through Cardiff Council as trainees 

Page 31



16

compared with 5 in 2014-15.  This year corporate apprenticeships were offered 

to 2 young people as a result of their work as trainees and a total of 15 staff 

across the Council have been trained as youth mentors.  It is anticipated that 

the impact of this scheme for care leavers at 19 will become evident as the 

young people benefitting from the scheme reach the age of 19.

39.As at 30th June 2016, 54 children were in external residential placements.  

Children’s Services were solely responsible for funding 33 of these placements 

with the remaining 21 receiving contributions from Education, Health, or both.  

The average weekly cost per child was £3,502, although this ranged from 

£1,800 to £5,300.  Contributions from Education range from 5% to 50% and 

Health range from 2% to 15% of the weekly cost - the percentage of the 

contribution is based upon factors such as how much the provider charges for 

education and therapy costs, the number of weeks in the school terms, the 

period of therapy, continuing health care needs and whether the child is 

statemented.

Financial Implications
40.There are no direct financial implications arising from the report.

Legal Implications
41.There are no legal implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATION
The Committee is recommended to:

 Consider the contents of the report and report any comments to the Cabinet 

Member.

TONY YOUNG
Director of Social Services
8th August 2016

Page 32



City of Cardiff Council
Children’s Services

Children’s Services Performance Management Information Report

Appendix A – List of New Children’s Services National Performance Indicators

1. The percentage of assessments completed for children within statutory timescales.

2. The percentage of children supported to remain living within their family.

3. The percentage of looked after children returned home from care during the year.

4. The percentage of re-registrations of children on local authority Child Protection 

Registers.

5. Average length of time for all children who were on the CPR during the year.

6. The percentage of all care leavers who are in education, training or employment at 

12 months after leaving care.

7. The percentage of all care leavers who are in education, training or employment at 

24 months after leaving care.

8. The percentage of care leavers who have experienced homelessness during the 

year.

9. The percentage of children achieving the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 2.

10.The percentage of children achieving the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 4.

11.The percentage of looked after children who have had their teeth checked by a 

dentist during the year.

12.The percentage of placements started during the year where the child is registered 

with a provider of general medical services within 10 working days of the start of the 

placement.

13.The percentage of children looked after at 31 March who have experienced one or 

more change of school, during a period or periods of being looked after, which were 

not due to transitional arrangements, in the 12 months to 31 March.

14.The percentage of children looked after on 31 March who have had three or more 

placements during the year.

Page 33



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Page 35

Agenda Item 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12, 13, 21 of Part(s) 4 and 5 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Page 41

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12, 13, 21 of Part(s) 4 and 5 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Page 43

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12, 13, 21 of Part(s) 4 and 5 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Page 51

Agenda Item 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12, 13, 21 of Part(s) 4 and 5 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Page 53

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12, 13, 21 of Part(s) 4 and 5 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Page 71

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12, 13, 21 of Part(s) 4 and 5 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol


	Agenda
	3 Cofnodion
	Minutes

	4 Cyflwyno Cynllun Pan fydda' i'n barod (WIR)
	5 Chwarter 1 Adroddiad ar Gwynion a Chanmoliaeth 2016/17
	6 Chwarter 1 Diweddariad ar Berfformiad ac Alldro Blynyddol
	6 - App A - Q1 Performance Report

	8 Adroddiad Chwarterol Gwasanaethau Plant NYAS
	8 - NYAS case study (Confidential)
	8 - NYAS - RBA - 1st Feb - 30th Apr 16 (Confidential)

	9 Adroddiad Rheoliad 32
	9 - Reg 32 Visit App A (Confidential)
	9 - Reg 32 2016 Visit App B (Confidential)


